SOLITARIO EXPLORATION & ROYALTY CORP. Form 424B3

September 27, 2012

Filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3)

Registration Statement No. 333-183662

**PROSPECTUS** 

DATED SEPTEMBER 27, 2012

SOLITARIO EXPLORATION & ROYALTY CORP.

1,624,748 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

This prospectus covers the offer and sale by the selling stockholder identified in this prospectus of up to 1,624,748 shares of common stock, \$0.01 par value per share, of Solitario Exploration & Royalty Corp. (referred to herein as "we" or "us" or the "Company") to be issued upon the exercise of a warrant held by the selling stockholder (the "Warrant"). The Warrant was issued on August 21, 2012 to the selling stockholder in a private placement transaction as partial consideration for financing services provided in connection with the Company entering into a Facility Agreement on August 10, 2012. The Warrant is exercisable at \$1.5387 per share for a term of three years from its date of issuance. The exercise price, and the number of shares of common stock that may be acquired upon exercise of the Warrant, are subject to certain anti-dilution provisions. We are not selling any common stock under this prospectus and will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale or other disposition of shares by the selling stockholder. We will, however, receive proceeds from the exercise of the Warrant if the Warrant is exercised for cash.

Upon the exercise of the Warrant the selling stockholder may sell the common stock acquired upon exercise (the "Warrant Shares") from time to time in the principal market on which the stock is traded at the prevailing market price or in negotiated transactions. The selling stockholder will bear all commissions and discounts, if any, attributable to the sales of shares. The selling stockholder may be deemed an underwriter of the Warrant Shares which it is offering. However, we will pay the expenses of registering the resale of the Warrant Shares.

Our Common Stock is registered under Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") and is listed on the NYSE MKT under the symbol "XPL". The last reported sales price per share of our Common Stock as reported on September 26, 2012 by the NYSE MKT was \$1.72.

You should carefully read this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement before you invest. INVESTING IN THESE SECURITIES INVOLVES SIGNIFICANT RISKS. SEE "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 3.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this Prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.	of
The date of this Prospectus is September 27, 2012.	

THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL THESE SECURITIES AND IS NOT SOLICITING AN OFFER

TO BUY THESE SECURITIES IN ANY STATE WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
PROSPECTUS SUMMARY	1
ABOUT SOLITARIO EXPLORATION & ROYALTY CORP.	1
NOTE OF CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	2
RISK FACTORS	3
USE OF PROCEEDS	3
SELLING STOCKHOLDER	3
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	5
EXPERTS	6
LEGAL MATTERS	7
INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE	7
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	8
INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES	8

i

## ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not, and the selling stockholder has not, authorized anyone to provide you with additional or different information. If anyone provides you with additional, different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. You should not assume that the information we have included in this prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date of the document incorporated by reference is accurate as of any date other than the date of the document incorporated by reference. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date.

All references to "we", "us", "our", "Solitario" or the "Company" in this prospectus are to Solitario Exploration & Royalty Coand its subsidiaries, unless the context suggests otherwise.

#### PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This prospectus relates to the offer and sale by the selling stockholder identified in this prospectus, of up to 1,624,748 shares of our common stock. The number of shares the selling stockholder may sell consists solely of shares of common stock that it may receive if it exercises a warrant that was issued to the selling stockholder on August 21, 2012 (the "Warrant"). We are filing the registration statement (of which this prospectus is a part) to fulfill a contractual obligation to do so, which we undertook on August 10, 2012 pursuant to the terms of a Facility Agreement whereby the selling stockholder agreed to extend a loan to the Company. We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the common stock by the selling stockholder, but we may receive the exercise price of the warrants if they are exercised for cash.

#### ABOUT SOLITARIO EXPLORATION & ROYALTY CORP.

Solitario is a development stage company that focuses on the acquisition of precious and base metal properties with exploration potential and the development or purchase of royalty interests. We acquire and hold a portfolio of exploration properties for future sale, joint venture, or to create a royalty prior to the establishment of proven and probable reserves. Although our mineral properties may be developed in the future on our own or through a joint venture, Solitario has never previously developed a mineral property. However, in August 2010 we signed a Letter of Intent related to the Mt. Hamilton project in Nevada, and in December 2010 we signed a Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement to form Mt. Hamilton LLC ("MH-LLC"). On February 22, 2012 we announced the completion of a feasibility study on our Mt. Hamilton project. As a result of the completion of that feasibility study, we have earned an 80% interest in the Mt. Hamilton project and intend to develop the Mt. Hamilton project, subject to a number of factors including obtaining necessary permits and availability of required capital, none of which is currently in place. Further, we are exploring on other mineral properties that may be developed in the future by us or through a joint venture. We may also evaluate mineral properties to potentially buy a royalty.

We have been actively involved in mineral exploration since 1993. We have recorded revenues from joint venture delay rental payments of \$200,000 each year, respectively, related to our Bongará project in Peru during 2011, 2010 and 2009, and during 2011 recorded \$42,000 of payment revenue related to our Mercurio project in Brazil. Previously, our last significant revenues were recorded in 2000 upon the sale of the Yanacocha property for \$6,000,000. Future revenues from joint venture payments or the sale of properties, if any, will also occur on an infrequent basis. At August 31, 2012, we had 12

mineral exploration properties in the United States, Mexico, Brazil, Bolivia and Peru and our Yanacocha and La Tola royalty properties in Peru.

On August 10, 2012, we entered into a Facility Agreement (the "Facility Agreement") with RMB Australia Holdings Limited, ("RMBAH") and RMB Resources Inc., corporation ("RMBR"). Under the Facility Agreement, the Company may borrow up to \$5,000,000 at any time during the 24 month period commencing on the date of initial funding. The Company anticipates that, in addition to paying certain fees and costs associated with the Facility Agreement, the Company will use the proceeds from the loan(s) to be used for: (i) ongoing permitting and other pre-development efforts at the Mt. Hamilton gold project; (ii) ongoing earn-in payments related to MH-LLC, the Company's 80% owned subsidiary, which owns the Mt. Hamilton project; (iii) general corporate purposes as set forth in a corporate and project budget approved by RMBAH, and (iv) for any other purpose approved by RMBAH.

## **Corporate Information**

We were incorporated in Colorado on November 15, 1984 under the name Solitario Resources Corporation as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Crown Resources Corporation, or Crown. On June 12, 2008, our shareholders approved an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation to change our name from Solitario Resources Corporation to Solitario Exploration & Royalty Corp. In July 1994, Solitario became a publicly traded company on the Toronto Stock Exchange through its Initial Public Offering. On July 26, 2004, Crown completed a spin-off of its holdings of our shares to its shareholders as part of the acquisition of Crown by Kinross Gold Corporation. Our website address is www.solitarioxr.com. The information contained in, or that can be accessed through, our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus and is not part of this prospectus.

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE MKT under the symbol "XPL" and on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol "SLR." Our principal executive offices are located at 4251 Kipling Street, Suite 390, Wheat Ridge, Colorado 80033. Our telephone number is (303) 534-1030.

#### NOTE OF CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve risks and uncertainties, as well as assumptions that, if they never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical fact are statements that could be deemed forward-looking statements, including any projections of financing needs, revenue, expenses, earnings or losses from operations, or other financial items; any statements of the plans, strategies and objectives of management for future operations; any statements concerning exploration and development plans and timelines; any statements of expectation or belief; and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. In addition, forward looking statements may contain the words "believe," "anticipate," "expect," "estimate," "intend," "plan," "project," "will be," "will con "will result," "seek," "could," "may," "might," or any variations of such words or other words with similar meanings.

The forward-looking statements included in this prospectus represent our estimates as of the date of this prospectus. We specifically disclaim any obligation to update these forward-looking statements in the future, except as required by law. These forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as representing our estimates or views as of any date subsequent to the date of this prospectus.

The Company is under no duty to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this prospectus. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

#### RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves significant risks. You should carefully consider and evaluate all of the information included and incorporated by reference in this prospectus, including the risk factor set forth below, the risk factors incorporated herein by reference from "Item 1A. Risk Factors" of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the SEC on March 12, 2012, and as further updated by our subsequent Securities Exchange Act of 1934 filings we file with the SEC after the date of this prospectus and that are, in each case, incorporated by reference herein. Any of these risks could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition, which in turn could materially and adversely affect the price of our common stock and the value of your investment in our common stock.

Our substantial debt could adversely affect our financial condition; and our related debt service obligations may adversely affect our cash flow and ability to invest in and grow our businesses.

We have, and for the foreseeable future will continue to have, a significant amount of indebtedness. As of June 30, 2012 we had in excess of \$4,500,000 in short and long term indebtedness, and on or about August 10, 2012 we incurred an additional \$1,500,000 in indebtedness pursuant to the Facility Agreement. We likely will seek to draw down additional amounts under the terms of the Facility Agreement. Amounts outstanding under the Facility Agreement incur interest at the LIBOR plus 5% with interest being payable quarterly. Accordingly, if the LIBOR rates increase the corresponding interest rate under the Facility Agreement will increase. The servicing of this debt will require the Company to devote a substantial portion of its financial resources to its repayment, and as a result such funds will not be available to use in future operations, or investing in our businesses. Further, loans extended under the Facility Agreement are secured by substantially all of the Company's assets and therefore if the Company defaults under the Facility Agreement it could result in the lender attempting to foreclose on those assets to satisfy the Company's debt obligations.

## **USE OF PROCEEDS**

We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale or other disposition of shares of our common stock by the selling stockholder pursuant to this prospectus. The shares covered by this prospectus are issuable upon exercise of a warrant to acquire our common stock (the "Warrant"). Upon any exercise of the Warrant for cash, the selling stockholder would pay us the exercise price of the Warrants. The cash exercise price of the warrants is currently \$1.5387 per share of our common stock. It is expected that cash received from exercise of the Warrant will be used to repay any outstanding balance under the Facility Agreement, including any unpaid interest and fees. Any cash received from the exercise of the Warrant in excess of these payments will be used for general corporate purposes although we may use a portion of the proceeds to invest in or acquire additional mineral properties or royalty interests.

Additionally, under certain conditions set forth in the Warrant, the warrant is exercisable on a cashless basis. If all or any portion of the Warrant is exercised on a cashless basis, we would not receive any cash payment from the selling stockholder upon exercise

## SELLING STOCK HOLDER

On August 10, 2012, we entered into the Facility Agreement with and RMBAH and RMBR whereby RMBAH agreed to loan us up to \$5,000,000. In connection with the Facility Agreement, on August 21, 2012 we issued RMBAH a warrant to acquire 1,624,748 shares of Company common stock as partial consideration for the financing services it provided in connection with the Facility Agreement.

The Warrant expires three years from its date of its issuance and has an exercise price of \$1.5387 per share, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments. In the Facility Agreement we agreed to use our best efforts to register the resale of the shares of common stock underlying the Warrant.

The selling stockholder may sell up to 1,624,748 shares of our common stock pursuant to this prospectus. The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock by the selling stockholder as of August 31, 2012. All of the shares of common stock included in the table are issuable upon the exercise of the Warrant. This prospectus will only permit the selling stockholder to resell the shares of Company common stock that may be acquired upon the exercise of the Warrant, and no other Company securities it holds or may later acquire. We will not receive any proceeds from the resale of the common stock by the selling stockholder.

The selling stockholder has not held any position or office, or has otherwise had a material relationship, with us or any of our subsidiaries within the past three years other than with respect to the terms set forth in the Facility Agreement.

The table below sets forth information concerning the resale of the shares of common stock by the selling stockholder. The following table also sets forth the name of the selling stockholder who is offering the resale of shares of common stock by the Prospectus, the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by such person, the number of shares of common stock that may be sold in this offering and the number of shares of common stock such person will own after the offering, assuming they sell all of the shares offered. There were 34,454,958 shares of our common stock outstanding as of September 27, 2012.

Name	Number of Shares of Common Stock	Number of Shares of	Number of Shares of Common Stock and Percent	
Name	Beneficially Owned Prior to This Offering (1)	Common Stock Offered Hereby	of Class After This Offering (2)	
RMB Australia Holdings Limited (3)	1,624,748 (4)	1,624,748	0	
TOTAL	1,624,748	1624,748	0	

The beneficial ownership of the common stock by the selling stockholder set forth in the table is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Under such rule, beneficial ownership (1) includes any shares as to which the selling stockholder has sole or shared voting power or investment power and also any shares, which the selling stockholder has the right to acquire within 60 days. Further, the inclusion of shares in the table does not constitute an admission that the named selling stockholder is a direct or indirect beneficial owner of such shares.

(2) Assumes that all securities registered will be sold.

Each of Arnold Vogel, Michael Louis Schonfeld, and Gregory Steven Gay of RMB Australia Holdings Limited (3)hold voting and investment power over any Company securities held by RMB Australia Holdings Limited. Each of the foregoing persons is a director of RMB Australia Holdings Limited.

(4) Consists solely of the shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of the Warrant.

## PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The selling stockholder, from time to time may, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any or all of the shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of the Warrant on any stock exchange, market or trading facility on which the shares are traded or in private transactions. These dispositions may be at fixed prices, at prevailing market prices at the time of sale, at prices related to the prevailing market price, at varying prices determined at the time of sale, or at negotiated prices. The selling stockholder may use one or more of the following methods when disposing of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant:

§ ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker-dealer solicits purchasers;

§ block trades in which the broker-dealer will attempt to sell the shares as agent but may position and resell a portion of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction;

- § purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by the broker-dealer for its account;
- § an exchange or market distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange or market;
  - § privately negotiated transactions;
    - § settlement of short sales;

§ broker-dealers may agree with the selling stockholders to sell a specified number of such shares at a stipulated price per share;

- § through options, swaps or derivatives;
- § combination of any such methods of sale; and
- § any other method permitted pursuant to applicable law.

The selling stockholder may also sell shares under Rule 144 under the Securities Act as amended (the "Securities Act"), if available, rather than under this prospectus.

Broker-dealers engaged by the selling stockholder may arrange for other brokers-dealers to participate in sales. Broker-dealers may receive commissions or discounts from the selling stockholders (or, if any broker-dealer acts as agent for the purchaser of shares, from the purchaser) in amounts to be negotiated. The selling stockholders do not expect these commissions and discounts to exceed what is customary in the types of transactions involved.

The selling stockholder may from time to time pledge or grant a security interest in some or all the shares of common stock respectively owned by it and, if the selling stockholder defaults in the

5

performance of its secured obligations, the pledgees or secured parties may offer and sell the shares of common stock from time to time under this prospectus, or under an amendment to this prospectus under Rule 424(b)(3) or other applicable provision of the Securities Act amending the list of selling stockholder to include the pledgee, transferee or other successors in interest as selling stockholder under this prospectus.

The selling stockholder and any broker-dealers or agents that are involved in selling the shares of common stock may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act, in connection with such sales. In such event, any commissions received by such broker-dealers or agents and any profit on the resale of the shares of common stock purchased by them may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts under the Securities Act.

The selling stockholder has advised us that it has not entered into any agreements, understandings or arrangements with any underwriters or broker-dealers regarding the sale of their shares of common stock, nor is there an underwriter or coordinating broker acting in connection with a proposed sale of shares of common stock by the selling stockholder. If we are notified by the selling stockholder that any material arrangement has been entered into with an underwriter or a broker-dealer for the sale of shares of common stock, if required, we will file a supplement to this prospectus. If the selling stockholder uses this prospectus for any sale of the shares of common stock, it will be subject to the prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act.

We have agreed to keep the registration statement effective until such date that is the earlier of (i) the Warrant expiration date; (ii) the date on which all of the shares of common stock underlying the Warrant are eligible to be sold without restriction pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act; or (iii) the date on which the selling stockholder no longer holds any of the shares of common stock offered hereby. The selling stockholder may sell all, some or none of their shares in this Offering.

We are required to pay certain fees and expenses incurred incident to the registration of the shares. We have agreed to indemnify the selling stockholders against certain losses, claims, damages and liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

Once sold under the registration statement, of which this prospectus forms a part, the shares of common stock will be freely tradable in the hands of persons other than our affiliates.

# **EXPERTS**

Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC, independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, as set forth in their report, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement. Our financial statements are incorporated by reference in reliance on Ehrhardt Keefe Steiner & Hottman PC's report, given on their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Certain information regarding our Mt. Hamilton project incorporated by reference in this prospectus is included in reliance on portions of an independent technical report prepared by SRK Consulting (US), Inc., concerning the Mt. Hamilton project and has been included herein in reliance on the authority of such firm as experts in geology and engineering.

6

#### **LEGAL MATTERS**

Polsinelli Shughart PC has opined as to the legality of the shares of common stock being offered by this registration statement.

#### INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information and reports we file with it, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to these documents. Our SEC file number is 001-32978. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus, and information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede the information already incorporated by reference. We are incorporating by reference the documents listed below, which we have already filed with the SEC. We are also incorporating by reference all other reports that we file with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act between the date of this prospectus and the termination of the Offering (other than information that is not deemed filed under the Exchange Act). To the extent that any information contained in any Current Report on Form 8-K or any exhibit thereto, was furnished to, rather than filed with, the SEC, such information or exhibit is specifically not incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

§ our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011;

 $\S$  our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2012 and June 30, 2012 and filed on May 7, 2012 and August 9, 2012 respectively;

 $\S$  our Current Reports on Form 8-K (other than information furnished rather than filed) filed with the SEC on June 13, 2012, June 15, 2012, July 2, 2012, and August 16, 2012; and

The description of our common stock contained in our registration statement on Form 8-A, which was filed with the SEC on August 9, 2006, including any amendment or report filed for the purpose of updating such description.

Upon request, we will provide, without charge, to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a copy of this prospectus is delivered a copy of the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus. You may request a copy of these filings, and any exhibits we have specifically incorporated by reference as an exhibit in this prospectus, at no cost by writing or telephoning us at the following address:

Solitario Exploration & Royalty Corp.

Attn: Corporate Secretary

4251 Kipling Street, Suite 390

Wheat Ridge, Colorado 80033

(303) 534-1030

This prospectus is part of a registration statement we filed with the SEC. We have incorporated exhibits into this registration statement. You should read the exhibits carefully for provisions that may be important to you.

You should rely only on the information incorporated by reference or provided in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information in this prospectus or in the documents incorporated by reference is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of this prospectus or those documents.

7

#### WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We are subject to the information requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and in accordance with the Exchange Act, file annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any document we file at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You may call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the Public Reference Room. These documents also may be accessed through the SEC's electronic data gathering, analysis and retrieval system, or EDGAR, via electronic means, including the SEC's home page on the Internet (www.sec.gov).

We have the authority to designate and issue more than one class or series of stock having various preferences, conversion and other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividends, qualifications, and terms and conditions of redemption. See "Description of Preferred Stock" and "Description of Common Stock." We will furnish a full statement of the relative rights and preferences of each class or series of our stock which has been so designated and any restrictions on the ownership or transfer of our stock to any stockholder upon request and without charge. Written requests for such copies should be directed to Solitario Exploration & Royalty Corp., Attn: Corporate Secretary, 4251 Kipling Street, Suite 390, Wheat Ridge, Colorado 80033. Our telephone number is (303) 534-1030. Our website is located at www.solitarioxr.com. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus and, therefore, is not part of this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement.

## INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES

Our Articles of Incorporation limit the liability of our directors to the fullest extent permitted by Colorado law and provide that we are authorized to indemnify them to the fullest extent permitted by such law. Our By-laws provide that we are authorized to indemnify our officers to the fullest extent permitted by Colorado law. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the Company pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the Company has been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable.